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Upholding the principle of equal treatment, the National Focal Point cannot provide a prior opinion regarding the acceptability of 

applicants/partners, projects or certain activities and costs, and cannot prejudge the outcome of certain phases of the award procedure as 

described in the Call. Therefore, the National Focal Point is not able to answer the questions that require an assessment of a specific project, 

specific applicant/partner, specific activities, specific costs, and similar. In case of such questions, the answer of the competent body will refer to 

the relevant part of the Call documentation. 

 

 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                    
 

No. Question Answer     

1.  Is subcontracting of project preparation and/or project 

implementation an eligible cost? 
In accordance with point 7 of the Call eligible are the expenditures 

incurred between the first and final dates of eligibility as specified in 

the Grant Agreement. The earliest date of eligibility of expenditures is 

the date of adoption of the award decision. Therefore, the cost of 

subcontracting the preparation of the project is not eligible. 

The cost of subcontracting the implementation of the project is not 

eligible within the Call. 

 

2. When are the tender results expected? 

 

The duration of the funds award procedure will depend on the number of 

applications received. The completion of the quality assessment of 

applications is expected by the end of the first quarter of 2023. 

 

When is the earliest the project implementation can start? In accordance with point 7 of the Call eligible are the expenditures 

incurred between the first and final dates of eligibility as specified in the 

Grant Agreement. The earliest date of eligibility of expenditures is the 

date of adoption of the award decision. 

 

3.  The form/Annex 6. Declaration of exemption from value 

added tax (VAT) for the applicant and the partner(s) is 

specified in the Call, but we do not find a template of the form 

on the web page. Can we fill it in free form? 

The form is published and available for download on the Call web page 

 

https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-

cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/ 

 

https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/
https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/


                                                                                                                                                                                    
4.  In the application documentation for Norwegian-Croatian 

bilateral projects, the documentation states that they are for 

the period until 2021 (EEA AND NORWAY GRANTS 2014-

2021). 

Do we still fill out those forms? 

 

Application documentation for the Call is published at the following link: 

https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-

cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/ 

 

and it must be filled out and submitted in the manner and within the time 

frame as specified in the Call. The years specified are an indication of the 

financial perspective of the financial mechanisms, the implementation of 

which is still ongoing. 

 

5. Is it possible to include the item "Indirect costs" in the 

project budget, which would amount to 15% of the total 

direct costs of staff. 

Indirect expenditures are not eligible within the Call. 

6.  Regarding the Call "Strengthening bilateral cooperation 

between Croatia and Norway in Green transition" which is 

open until 28 November 2022, we are interested, but we are 

wondering if the salary costs are eligible under this Call? 

 

The salary cost is eligible in the framework of the Call if it is strictly 

necessary and proportionate to the proposed initiative and meets the other 

criteria from point 7 of the Call, which will be assessed for each 

application separately. 

7. I would like answers to the following questions in relation to 

the Call for " Strengthening bilateral cooperation between 

Croatia and Norway in Green transition" which has just been 

opened: 

a) Are the costs of external services for project management 

eligible? 

b) Is there a limit for the cost of external services 

("Contractual research") in relation to the total budget of the 

project? 

The cost of external services for project management is not eligible. 

 

If the question under b) refers to the question under a), consider that the 

costs of external services for project management are not eligible within 

the Call. 

For other expenditures that are proportional and necessary for the 

implementation of the proposal of the bilateral initiative and the 

achievement of its goals, the Call did not set any limitations regarding 

the total budget of the initiative. 

 

https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/
https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/


                                                                                                                                                                                    
8.  

1. When is the planned start of implementation? In Annex 3. 

Timetable, it is necessary to enter the month of the project 

implementation and the month of the year. 

2. Are indirect expenditures acceptable as overhead costs for 

the office where project activities are carried out and 

according to what principle are they calculated? 

3. Are the costs of rewards for employees, Christmas bonus, 

etc. eligible? 

4. The instructions refer to Annex 5. Declaration of absence 

of conflict of interests. Can we fill it in free form? 

5. The instructions refer to Annex 6. Declaration of 

exemption from value added tax (VAT). Can we fill it in free 

form? 

1. The completion of the quality assessment of applications is 

expected by the end of the first quarter of 2023. If necessary, 

successful applicants will be invited to submit an updated Annex 

3. Timetable before signing the Grant Agreement. 

2. Indirect expenditures are not eligible within the Call. 

3. The expenditures of rewards for employees, Christmas bonus etc. 

are not eligible within the Call. 

4. The document Declaration of absence of conflict of interests does 

not need to be submitted as part of the application for the Call. 

5. The form is published and available for download on the Call 

web page, https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-

strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-

transition/  

 

9.  

We are developing an application for the Call 

“Strengthening bilateral cooperation between Croatia and 

Norway in Green transition” and we are interested if the 

representatives of the ministry could be included as project 

partners? 

The point 3 of the Call determines which applicants and partners are 

eligible within the Call. Among others, these can be central government. 

When selecting partners, it is necessary to take into account expediency, 

conflict of interest and procedures of the institution involved. 

 

10.   

1. When will the results of the call be announced? 

 

The length of the duration of the grant procedure depends on the number 

of applications received. Completion of the award procedure is expected 

https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/
https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/
https://eeagrants.hr/en/open-call-for-proposals-strengthening-bilateral-cooperation-with-norway-in-green-transition/


                                                                                                                                                                                    
2. If funds are granted, what is starting point of the 12 

months’ time frame (starting of the project)?  

 

 

to be by the end of the first quarter of 2023 and that can serve as a starting 

point of the implementation of the initiative.  

If necessary, the successful applicants will be invited to submit an 

updated Annex 3. Application implementation timetable before signing 

the Grant Agreement. 

11. 1. Is it enough to submit the application form in English or is 

it necessary to submit the Croatian version of the documents 

as well? If necessary, where can I find forms in Croatian? 

 

2. Which documents must be submitted by the partner 

institution from Norway as part of the application? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. The applications shall be submitted in English only. 

 

2. The list of documents that must be submitted for the partner is 

specified in point 8 of the Invitation, namely: 

- Legal form of the partner(s) organisation(s) evidenced by an 

extract from the relevant national register  

- Letter of partnership intent - a statement by which the applicant 

and envisaged project partners declare their intent to form a 

partnership in the event of the grant application being selected 

for funding; and by which they outline their roles and 

responsibilities in the project 

- Declaration of the absence of double financing for the applicant 

and the partner(s) (Annex 4)  

- Declaration of exemption from value added tax (VAT) for the 

applicant and the partner(s)  

- Bank identification of the applicant and the partners 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                    
 

3. Up to what amount is it possible to request an advance 

payment of funds? 

 

3. In accordance with point 7 of the Call, the amount of advance 

payment for applicants who are not beneficiaries of the state 

budget will be determined for each selected bilateral initiative 

separately, depending on the size of the application budget and 

duration of the initiative's implementation. Payments towards 

applicants who are direct State budgetary users shall be made in 

accordance with state budgetary rules. 

 


